
Dinas a Sir Abertawe 
 
Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod 
 

 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod 

 

Pwyllgor Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol a 
Chadernid Ariannol 

 
Lleoliad: 
 

Cyfarfod Aml-Leoliad - Ystafell Lilian Hopkin, Neuadd y Ddinas / MS 
Teams 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Mawrth, 23 Ebrill 2024 

Amser: 
 

2.00 pm 

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd  Mandy Evans 
 

 

Aelodaeth: 
Cynghorwyr: P N Bentu, J A Hale, T J Hennegan, S Joy, E T Kirchner, F D O'Brien 
a/ac L V Walton 
 
Gwylio ar-lein:  http://tiny.cc/CSFRstc234 
 

 
Agenda 

Rhif y Dudalen.  
1   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
  
2   Derbyn datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.  

 www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau 
  

 

  
3   Cofnodion: 1 - 4 

 Cymeradwyo a llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod(ydd) blaenorol fel cofnod 
cywir. 

 

  
4   Adroddiad Blynyddol Pwyllgor Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol a Chadernid Ariannol 2023-2024. 
5 - 10 

  
5   Cynllun Gwaith 11 - 12 
 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Dydd Mercher, 17 Ebrill 2024 
Cyswllt: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - (01792) 636923 
 

http://tiny.cc/CSFRstc234
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau


 
 

 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 
Minutes of the Corporate Services & Financial 
Resilience Service Transformation Committee 

 
Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS 
Teams  

Tuesday, 23 January 2024 at 2.00 pm 

 
Present: Councillor V M Evans (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s) 
P N Bentu S Joy E T Kirchner 
F D O'Brien L V Walton  
 
Officer(s)  
Caritas Adere Associate Lawyer 
Emily-Jayne Davies Strategic Policy Officer 
Rachael Davies Head of HR & Service Centre 
Ben Smith Director of Finance / Section 151 Officer 
Lee Wenham Head of Communications & Customer Engagement 
Samantha Woon Democratic Services Officer 
 
Also present 
Councillor D H Hopkins – Cabinet Member for Corporate Services & Performance 
Councillor A S Lewis – Cabinet Member for Service Transformation 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Councillor(s):  None. 

 
 

23 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City & County of Swansea, 
no interests were declared. 
 

24 Minutes: 
 
Resolved that the Minutes of the Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service 
Transformation Committee held on 12 December 2023 be approved and signed as a 
correct record, subject to Councillor S Joy’s attendance being recorded. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service Transformation Committee 
(23.01.2024) 

Cont’d 
 

 

25 Workforce and OD Transformation Programme Progress - Leadership and 
Management Development. 
 
The Head of HR & Service Centre presented a ‘for information’ report which detailed 
the Workforce and OD Transformation Programme work in relation to the Leadership 
and Management development theme. 
 
The Workforce Strategy was approved by Cabinet in October 2022 after a period of 
design and consultation with stakeholders during 2022. 
 
The Workforce Strategy 2022-2027 contained four key themes to drive 
organisational culture and improvement over the lifespan of the strategy, contributing 
to the 2023-2028 Corporate Plan, ‘Successful and Sustainable Swansea.’  

The Workforce and OD Transformation Programme business case sits alongside the 
Council’s Workforce Strategy 2022-27. The programme included projects that will 
deliver the strategic goals of the Workforce Strategy and the overall transformation 
aspirations of the Corporate Plan.  
 
The Head of HR and Service Centre detailed the projects taken forward in the first 
year and the projects that would be dealt with under the secondary developmental 
phase in future years.   
 
Members noted: 
 
• the two key areas of work and content under Leadership & Management 

programme. 
• Funding. 
• Partnership working with Gower College. 
• Details of the next cohort programme. 
• Progress with workforce fit for the future. 
• The ILM level 4/5 Management Development Programme.  
• Progress with expanding the roll out of an ILM Level 3 and an ILM Level 2 for 

employees. 
• The introduction of a Development Needs Analysis and its benefits. 
• Timescales around the wider leadership and management development and the 

development needs analysis. 
 
A report to Leadership scheduled for February would provide a full analysis of all 
Organisational Development activity that was being undertaken in addition to new 
possibilities that could be considered for 2024/25. 
 
Committee asked questions of the Officer who responded accordingly. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services & Performance and the Committee 
congratulated the Head or HR and Service Centre for the excellent piece of work. 
 

Page 2



Minutes of the Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service Transformation Committee 
(23.01.2024) 

Cont’d 
 

 

The Chair thanked the Head of HR & Service Centre and the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services & Performance for their input the informative report.  
 

26 Medium Term Financial Plan Update. 
 
The Section 151 Officer presented an ‘information report’ which provided an update 
on the Medium-Term Financial Plan in preparation for contributing to future savings 
proposals. 
 
On 26 September 2023 the Corporate Services and Financial Resilience Service 
Transformation Committee received a report giving background information on the 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP).  The report gave the background to why the 
MTFP was produced and what the process is for creating and updating the plan.  

 
The existing MTFP was attached to the September report for information. Since that 
time a considerable amount of work had gone into reviewing and updating the plan 
that was approved by Council in March 2023.  This had resulted in an updated and 
refreshed list of budget pressures and proposals to meet the corresponding funding 
gap.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Following the review and update to the MTFP a set of updated budget proposals had 
been produced.  This set of proposals was considered by Cabinet on 12 January 
2024 and following Cabinet’s decision the proposals were currently being consulted 
on. 
 
The report to Cabinet had been attached as Appendix A to this report, for the 
consideration of this Committee. 
 
The report and subsequent amendments following consultation would form the basis 
of the annual revenue budget and MTFP reports to Cabinet in February, whereby 
Cabinet would consider before recommending the final Budget and MTFP reports to 
Council in March. 
 
Whilst the emphasis in the Budget Proposals report tends to be on how the budget 
gap would be funded, so on where savings would be made, it was noted that as an 
overall percentage of the budget we have to spend, the value of savings is relatively 
small – the gross budget is over £870m and the value of savings over the 4 years of 
the MTFP is estimated to be £56m (about 6%). 
 
Consultation started on 12 January 2024 and would close on 11 February 2024.  Any 
response from the Corporate Services and Financial Resilience Service 
Transformation Committee would be very welcome and would be incorporated into 
the final reports to Cabinet and Council. 
 
The Chair thanked the Section 151 Officer for the informative report.  
 

27 Work Plan. 
 
The Chair presented the Committee Work Plan 2023-2024. 

Page 3



Minutes of the Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service Transformation Committee 
(23.01.2024) 

Cont’d 
 

 

 
It was noted that the Committee had concluded their Work for the 2023-2024 
Municipal Year. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
1) The meeting scheduled for 27 February 2024 be cancelled. 
2) The final meeting of the Committee on 23 April 2024 consider the Annual Report. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.31 pm 
 
 

Chair 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

Report of the Director of Corporate Services 
 

 Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service Transformation 
Committee - 23 April 2024  

 
Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service 

Transformation Committee  
Annual Report 2023-2024 

 
 
Purpose: To provide an annual report to the committee on the 

progress made in relation to its work plan for the Municipal 
Year 2023-24 

 
Report Author: Emily Davies  
 
Finance Officer: Paul Roach  
 
Legal Officer: Debbie Smith  
 
Access to Services   
Officer:  Rhian Millar  
 
For Information 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 During the municipal year 2023-24, the Corporate Services & Financial 

Resilience Service Transformation Committee (the ‘STC’) explored and 
contributed to the following items:  
 
• Swansea – A Human Rights City 
• Digital Transformation: Customer Charter and Service Standards 
• The Council’s Coproduction Policy 
• The Council’s  Medium Term Financial Plan 
• Workforce Transformation: Leadership, Management, Learning and 

Development 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

1.2 All items included within the work plan for 2023-24 have been discussed 
and suggestions related to policy development have been taken into 
account. 

 
1.3 During the municipal year 2023-24, a total of 6 committee meetings will 

have been held (including the meeting in April 2024 to present this annual 
report, and excluding the meeting in May 2023 to elect a Chair and Vice-
Chair). The majority of meetings have included formal written reports, 
published a week prior to the meeting and together with the agenda pack 
are available to the public on the Council’s website. 

  
1.4 The items explored by the committee have ranged from complex 

programmes of work, such as the Council’s Digital Transformation 
Programme, to the development of smaller bespoke policies such as the 
Council’s Co-Production Policy.  

 
2. Human Rights City 
 
2.1 At the June 2023 meeting of the STC, the Head of Communications and 

Marketing, assisted by the Consultation Co-ordinator, submitted a report 
which provided information on the Human Rights City Action Plan event 
(held on 16th June 2023) and sought input on the creation of Swansea 
Council’s Human Rights City Action Plan. 

 
2.2 Members were asked about their views on the report. Committee 

discussions focussed on the training opportunities for Members and 
officers, the importance of early intervention and publicity regarding 
workshops and events. 

 
2.3 As a result of the committee deliberations, it was agreed that further 

training sessions would be organised for committee members and that 
members be given the opportunity to participate in the survey. 

 
  
3. Digital Transformation: Customer Charter and Service Standards 
 
3.1 At the July 2023 meeting of the STC,  the Head of Digital & Customer 

Services presented for discussion the draft Customer Charter and Service 
Standards, highlighting that excellent Customer Service aligned with our 
Service Standards is the first goal of the new Digital Strategy agreed by 
Cabinet in April 2023. 

 
3.2 The Committee was asked to discuss the draft Customer Charter and 

Service Standards, and members focused on the following questions:  
 

- The Charter lists a series of promises to residents across a 
range of ways for people to access services. Would the 
Committee like to see any changes or additions? 
 

Page 6



 

- The Service Standards have been reviewed by Heads of 
Service and build on existing service levels. They have also 
been described in ways which residents may ask for services, 
as opposed to a Council hierarchy. When the information is 
online it will be easy for people to search using key words. 
However, could this be improved to make it easier for residents 
to find the information? 

 
 
3.3 Committee members discussed the importance of managing expectations, 

consulting with residents in areas of poor digital connectivity and ensuring 
those people who are not digitally literate are consulted, including groups 
and organisations. Members suggested it was important to have regard to 
the inclusion of ‘digital exclusion’ in the Strategy. Work around digital 
inclusion is being taken forward by the Tackling Poverty Service following 
the report from Audit Wales in March 2023, ‘Digital Inclusion in Wales’. 

 
3.4 The committee noted the use of plain language throughout the charter 

documents, considering this to be a very positive move. 
 
3.5 Members examined the timescales for actions and raised queries around 

the suggested 28 working days to process requests for free school meals. 
 
3.6 The Charter and Service Standards were approved by Cabinet on the 18th 

January 2024 and provided delegated authority to the relevant Director(s) 
and Cabinet Member(s) to approve any changes moving forward. 
Proposals for the re-wording of the free school meals standard was the 
subject of a ‘call in’ discussion at the Scrutiny Programme Committee on 
the 13th February. The proposals have been accepted and approved by 
the relevant Directors and Cabinet Members, and the listing has also been 
moved under the Benefits section of the service standards. 

 
3.7 At the December 2023 meeting, the committee was presented with an 

updated report, following input from public consultation and engagement, 
in the form of a survey.  The committee heard that there were 73 responses 
to the survey, of whom 81% were Swansea residents and 16% were 
Swansea Council staff. In addition, the Partnership and Involvement Team 
provided the support for further direct engagement and feedback through 
both the Ageing Well Steering Group and a large engagement event in 
December. The event had representation from groups who work with the 
Council on the LGBTQ+ Forum, Disability Liaison Group and Ageing Well. 
Another 71 responses were received from this work. Overall, 144 people 
responded and the Customer Charter and Service Standards Framework 
was updated as a result of their feedback. 

 
3.8 As a result of the Committee’s work the Customer Charter and Service 

Standards will be operational from the beginning of the new financial year. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

4. The Medium-Term Financial Plan 
 
4.1 At the September 2023 meeting of the STC, the Director of 

Finance/Section 151 Officer presented a report which detailed the 
information on the Medium-Term Financial Plan in preparation for 
contributing to future savings proposals.  

 
4.2 Members noted that the current economic climate presented a number of 

difficulties in terms of forecasting levels of inflation, pay awards and future 
funding.  This was further complicated by the requirement to meet policy 
commitments as well as balancing legal requirements, generally with 
insufficient core funding. 

 
4.3  On 15th February 2024, Cabinet  recommended the Medium-Term 

Financial Plan 2025/26 - 2027/28 to Council as the basis for future service 
financial planning. The STC noted the MTFP as a planning assumption, 
and the MTFP was subsequently approved at Council on 6th March 2024. 

 
5. Co-production 
 
5.1  Also at the September 2023 meeting of the STC, the Head of 

Communications and Marketing introduced an update from Co-production 
Lab Wales, detailing the work undertaken in building and embedding co-
production within the Council.  

 
5.2 Members were provided with a detailed summary of the Co-production 

Policy which included the background, a definition of co-production, co-
production and other engagement approaches, levels of co-production, 
applying co-production, when not to co-produce, high level guiding 
principles for implementation, roles in the process and additional 
information. 

 
5.3 The Head of Communications and Marketing thanked the Committee for 

their views which had helped shape the draft policy. The Committee 
provided further comments directly to officers or via the Council’s 
consultation page, and agreed to promote the Policy to any hard to reach 
groups with their communities.  

 
5.4 Following discussion at the STC, this item progressed to Cabinet. On 18th 

January 2024, the Chair of the Corporate Services & Financial Resilience 
Service Transformation Committee submitted a report that sought 
adoption of the Co-production Policy. Cabinet subsequently approved the 
policy.  

 
 
6. Workforce Transformation: Leadership, Management, Learning and 

Development 
 
6.1 At the January 2024 meeting of the STC, the Head of HR & Service Centre 

presented a report which detailed the Workforce and OD Transformation 

Page 8



 

Programme work in relation to the Leadership and Management 
development theme. This theme focuses on two key areas of work – 
developing our workforce culture and enabling growth of leadership and 
management skills. 

 
6.2 Members asked a number of questions about the transformation 

programme. It was noted that a report to Leadership was scheduled for 
February to provide a full analysis of all Organisational Development 
activity that is being undertaken in addition to new possibilities that could 
be considered for 2024/25. 

 
 7.  Integrated Assessment Implications  
 
7.1  The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and 

the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the 
exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Acts.  
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. • Foster good relations between 
people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. • 
Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socioeconomic 
disadvantage  
• Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language • Treat the 
Welsh language no less favourably than English. • Ensure that the needs 
of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs  

 
7.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that 

public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. 
Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic, 
social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in 
accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at 
achieving the ‘well-being goals’. 

 
 7.3  Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid 

due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and 
priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion, 
carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) 
and Welsh language. 

 
 7.4  There are no integrated assessment implications associated with this 

report. There is no impact identified on people and/or communities when 
considering all the impacts identified in the screening. This is a for 
information report and does not require any decision making which could 
impact on others.  

 
 

Page 9



 

8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1  There are no financial implications directly associated with this report.  
 
9.  Legal Implications  
 
9.1  There are no legal implications associated with this report.  
 
 
 
Background Papers: None  
 
Appendices: None. 

Page 10



 

 
 

Report of the Chair 
 

Corporate Services & Financial Resilience Service Transformation Committee 
– 23 April 2024 

 
Work Plan 2023-2024 

 
Committee 

Meeting 
Work Programme 

item 
Expected output Cabinet 

Member 
and Lead 

Officer 
20 June 
2023 

Policy Commitments:  
 
Human Rights City 

Contribute to the HRC 
2024+ action plan  

Cllr Elliott 
King 
 
Lee 
Wenham 

25 July 
2023 

Digital 
Transformation: 
Customer Charter 
and Service 
Standards. 

Contribute to development 
of Customer Service 
standards and service 
design to ensure people 
can and do access our 
services digitally  

Cllr Andrea 
Lewis 
 
Lee 
Wenham & 
Sarah 
Lackenby 

26 Sept 
2023 

a) Coproduction: 
 
Next Steps 
 
b) Medium Term 
Financial Plan: 
 
Presentation of 
background paper as 
preparation for meeting 
in October 
 

Contribute to the council’s 
next steps in coproduction 
post the CoPro Lab project 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Hayley 
Gwilym / 
Lee 
Wenham 
 
 
 
 
 
Ben Smith 

31 October 
2023 

Meeting Cancelled    

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



12 
December 
2023 

Digital transformation: 
Customer Services / 
Communication and 
Engagement with the 
Public 
 
Customer Charter and 
Service Standards 
Framework 

 
 

Contribute to development 
of Customer Service 
standards and service 
design to ensure people 
can and do access our 
services digitally  

Cllr Andrea 
Lewis 
 
Lee 
Wenham & 
Sarah 
Lackenby 

12 
December 
2023 

Coproduction: 
 
Final Report. 
 

Consideration prior to 
submission to Cabinet in 
January 2024. 

Cllr Hayley 
Gwilym / 
Lee 
Wenham 
 

23 January  
2024 

Workforce and OD 
Transformation 
Programme: 
 
Leadership and 
Management 
Development 
 

Contribute to the 
development of new 
leadership behaviours and 
a new learning and 
development offer 

Cllr David 
Hopkins 
 
Rachael 
Davies 

23 January 
2024 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan: 
 
Update 

 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Rob 
Stewart 
 
 
Ben Smith 

27 
February 
2024 

Meeting Cancelled.   

23 April 
2024 

Annual Report 2023-
2024. 

Summary of activity and 
outcomes from 2023-24 
work programme 

Lee 
Wenham & 
Emily 
Davies 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion:
	4 Adroddiad Blynyddol Pwyllgor Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol a Chadernid Ariannol 2023-2024.
	5 Cynllun Gwaith

